
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, April 11, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance………………………….…………………………………….Dave Tassoni 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Nancy Edwardsen, Importance of NAMI, Pro 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of March 14, 2024 minutes  
B. Layover of March 28, 2024 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule) 
 

9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the Extension of Watermain on Baxter 

Road Across I-39 and West to Harrisville Road (SECTION 22-00714-00-MS) 
Total Cost: $2,367,467 (Village of New Milford portion $526,766)     C.B. District: 11 

3. Resolution Authorizing a Construction Engineering Services Agreement with Willett 
Hofmann & Associates Inc. for the Extension of Watermain on Baxter Road I-39 and 
West to Harrisville Road (SECTION 22-00714-00-MS) 
Total Cost: $113,418 (Village of New Milford portion $29,412)           C.B. District: 11 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, April 25, 2024 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 



























CONSENT 
AGENDA 









Appointments 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Winnebago County Highway Department | 424 N. Springfield Ave. Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-0000  |  Email: highway@wincoil.us      

ResExSummary 20.1 version  

Prepared By:  Winnebago County Highway Department 

Committee:  Economic Development Committee 

Committee Date:  April 1, 2024 

Resolution Title: Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the Extension of 
Watermain on Baxter Road Across I-39 And West to Harrisville Road (Section 22-
00714-00-MS) 

County Code:  

Board Meeting Date:  Thursday, April 11, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?  Appropriation Amount:  $2,367,476    
($526,766 to be reimbursed by Village of New Milford) 
If not, explain funding source: 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  41700 - 46334  (Host Fees)     Budget Impact: $ 

Background Information:  
Per IGA’s with the village of New Milford on June 26, 2012 and February 8, 2024, the 
County agreed to extend the Baxter Rd watermain to the west side of I-39. New Milford 
requested for the extension to go up to Harrisville Road at their cost. Per the 2024 
agreement, the County will front the village’s share ($526,766). The bid also includes 
Alternate 1, which is the installation of a casing across I-39 at Rotary Road for future 
use when the watermain loops back.  

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the base bid, alternate 1 and alternate 2 (New Milford’s 
cost) 

Contract/Agreement: 
Contract to be signed after County Board approval of the agreement. 

Legal Review:   
By the State Attorney’s office. 

Follow-Up: 

http://www.wincoil.us/


24-000 
County Board:  4/11/2024 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

24-CR- 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
SPONSORED BY: JOHN SWEENEY 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF BID FOR THE EXTENSION OF 

WATERMAIN ON BAXTER ROAD ACROSS I-39 AND  
WEST TO HARRISVILLE ROAD 

(SECTION 22-00714-00-MS) 
 

 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County and the Villages of Cherry Valley and New Milford entered into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement, hereinafter referred to as “IGA”, dated June 26, 2012, relating to the I-
39/Baxter Road Redevelopment Project Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the IGA the Villages on Cherry Valley and New Milford created 
an Industrial Job Recovery Law (IJRL District) to spur development in the Baxter Road at I-39 
corridor; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County is going to construct a water main from the east side of I-39 to the west side 
on Baxter Road including an additional steel casing pipe underneath I-39 at Rotary Road for future 
use; and  
 
WHEREAS, an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Village of New Milford was approved by the 
County Board on February 8, 2024 for said watermain extension, to serve the properties annexed by 
the Village on the West side if I-39; and 
 
WHEREAS, in connection with said water main projects, four bids were received, as shown on the 
attached bid tab, at the Winnebago County Highway Department on March 18, 2024 for Section 22-
00714-00-MS with the low bid of all three section of work being from Fisher Excavating, Inc. of 
Freeport, Illinois in the amount of $2,367,476; and 
 
WHEREAS it would be in the public interest to award this project to the low bidder Fisher 
Excavating, Inc. of Freeport, Illinois in the amount of $2,367,476 ($1,840,710 by County; $526,766 by 
New Milford) which includes the base bid, alternate 1 and alternate 2; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the low bid received on March 18, 2024 for Section 22-00714-00-MS from Fisher 
Excavating, Inc. in the amount of $2,367,476 is hereby awarded and that Chairman of the County 
Board is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the County of Winnebago a contract with Fisher 
Excavating, Inc. for the above noted work; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption; and 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to prepare and 
deliver one (1) certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Treasurer, Auditor, Chief 
Operations Officer, and Winnebago County Engineer. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
   

  AGREE  DISAGREE 
   

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

TIM NABORS, VICE CHAIR  TIM NABORS, VICE CHAIR 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
The County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _____________, 2024, 
adopted the above and foregoing Resolution. 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 

 JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



























    Resolution Executive Summary 

Winnebago County Highway Department | 424 N. Springfield Ave. Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-0000  |  Email: highway@wincoil.us      

ResExSummary 20.1 version  

Prepared By:  Winnebago County Highway Department 

Committee:  Economic Development Committee 

Committee Date:  April 1, 2024 

Resolution Title:  Resolution Authorizing a Construction Engineering Services Agreement with 
Willett Hofmann & Associates, Inc. for the Extension of Watermain on Baxter Road Across I-39 
and West to Harrisville Road (Section 22-00714-00-MS) 

County Code:  

Board Meeting Date:  Thursday, April 11, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?     Appropriation Amount:  $ 113,418 
($29,412 to be reimbursed by the Village of New Milford 
If not, explain funding source: 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 41700 - 46334  (Host Fees)     Budget Impact: $ 

Background Information:  
This agreement is for construction inspection on this watemain project. Per IGA’s with 
the village of New Milford on June 26, 2012 and February 8, 2024, the County agreed to 
extend the Baxter Rd watermain to the west side of I-39. New Milford requested for the 
extension to go up to Harrisville Road at their cost. New Milford’s share of the 
construction inspection is $29,412.  

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval. 

Contract/Agreement: 
Agreement to be signed after County Board approval. 

Legal Review:   
By the State Attorney’s office. 

Follow-Up: 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  4/11/2024 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
24-CR- 

 
SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: JOHN SWEENEY 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH WILLETT HOFMANN & ASSOCIATES INC. FOR THE EXTENSION 

OF WATERMAIN ON BAXTER ROAD I-39 AND WEST TO HARRISVILLE ROAD 
 (SECTION 22-00714-00-MS) 

 
WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10(a) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois authorizes municipal corporations 
and other governmental entities to join together in intergovernmental agreements for the purpose of achieving 
statutory objectives and goals individually and jointly; and 
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County and the Villages of Cherry Valley and New Milford entered into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement, hereinafter referred to as the “IGA”, dated June 26, 2012, relating to the I-39/Baxter 
Road Redevelopment Project Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the IGA the Villages on Cherry Valley and New Milford created an Industrial 
Job Recovery Law (IJRL District) to spur development in the Baxter Road at I-39 corridor; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County is going to construct a water main from the east side of I-39 to the west side on Baxter 
Road, including an additional steel casing pipe underneath I-39 at Rotary Road for future use; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Village of New Milford is desirous to expand this water main from the west side of I-39 to 
Harrisville Road as the Village has annexed certain properties along the north and south side of Baxter Road to 
Interstate 39; and an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Village of New Milford was approved by the County 
Board for said watermain extension on February 8, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, there is insufficient County Highway Engineering staff to provide Phase III construction engineering 
inspection for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Willett Hofmann & Associates Inc. has agreed to provide Phase III construction engineering services 
for a fee not to exceed $113,418.00 ($84,006 by County and $29,412 by New Milford) as set forth in the attached 
Agreement: and 
 
WHEREAS it would be in the public interest to enter into the attached Local Public Agency Engineering Services 
Agreement to provide Phase III construction engineering services for water main construction on Baxter Road from 
east of I-39 to Harrisville Road. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the 
Chairman of the County Board is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the County of Winnebago the attached 
Local Public Agency Engineering Services Agreement with Willett Hofmann & Associates Inc. at a not to exceed 
price of $113,418.00 to provide Phase III construction engineering for water main extension on Baxter Road from 
east of I-39 to Harrisville in substantially the form attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption; and 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to prepare and deliver one 
(1) certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Treasurer, Auditor, Chief Operations Officer, and 
Winnebago County Engineer. 
 

Respectfully submitted 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

 
                                        

  AGREE  DISAGREE 
   

JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN  JOHN SWEENEY, CHAIRMAN 

TIM NABORS, VICE CHAIR  TIM NABORS, VICE CHAIR 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGELA FELLARS  ANGELA FELLARS 

VALERIE HANSERD  VALERIE HANSERD 

BRAD LINDMARK  BRAD LINDMARK 

JOHN PENNEY  JOHN PENNEY 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
The County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _____________, 2024, 
adopted the above and foregoing Resolution. 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 

 JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 















































UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: April 11, 2024 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Byron Station-Fire Protection Team Inspection Report 05000454/2023011 and 

05000455/2023011 
b. Closed Forthcoming Meeting with Constellation Energy Generation, LLC Regarding 

Future Application for Braidwood Station, Units 1 & 2 and Byron Station, Units 1 
& 2 (EPID L-2024-LRM-0022) 

c. Federal Register/Vol. 89, No. 64/Tuesday, April 2, 2024/Notices 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications a Quarterly Franchise 
Fee Payment 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received Monthly Reports from the Winnebago County 

Recorder’s Office and Winnebago County Clerk’s Office for February, 2024.  
 

 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Award of Bid for Extension of Watermain on Baxter Rd. across I-39 & west to Harrisville Rd.
	Resolution Authorizing Construction Engineering Services Agreement with Willett Hofmann & Associates
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



